






























































































































































































































































City of Montgomery – Public Works Department 

October 2018 Monthly Report 
 

General 
- Located and repaired broken sewer taps on vacant lots in Terra Vista 
- Repaired ditch at 779 Old Plantersville Rd. 
- Spot treated for fire ants at Community Center 
- Coordinated and repaired water leak at Pizza Shack 
- Setup and cleanup for National Night Out 
- Changed transmission fluid on mowing tractor 
- Sprayed for crazy ants around City Hall generator 
- Flooded Brock’s Lane to evaluate street for “bird bathing” 
- Attended GIS lunch and learn event hosted by Jones|Carter 
- Repaired manhole on Plez Morgan damaged in vehicle accident 
- Reset and/or replaced several endpoints for warranty replacement 
- Assisted PD and Entergy with traffic control for accident on Eva St. 
- Checked and cleared all storm inlets for debris 
- Trimmed limbs from road edge in several areas 
- Repaired asphalt sections on Buffalo Springs Dr. and Harley Dr. 
- Acquired bids for demolition of auction building 
- Repaired several potholes throughout city 
- Completed “Meter box assessment” of entire city and started repairs 
- Delivered several trash and recycle carts to customers 
- Cleared ditch of trash and debris on Baja St. 
- Repaired sewer cleanout at Abundant Life church to prevent infiltration 
- Disconnected water and sewer service for auction building and moved 

them to property line in preparation of demolition 
- Replaced brake pads on PW-1301 
- Repaired several manhole lids throughout Lonestar Estates 
- Weekly pre-trip inspections of vehicles 
- Weekly conference calls with engineer and utility operator 
- Weekly leak notifications from Beacon website 



- Weekly pumping of Terra Vista manhole 
- Daily removal of bandit signs as necessary 
- Daily utility locates as necessary 
- Monthly air filter and light bulb check of all facilities 
- Monthly AED inspections 
- Monthly cutoffs 
- Monthly safety meetings with safety officer and department 
- Continue performing safety inspection reports 
- Monthly idle meter checklist for consumption 
- Monthly weed killer list 
- Monthly grease trap inspections 
- 3 water taps  
- 3 sewer taps 
- 8 water leaks 
- 2 sewer stop ups 

 
Parks and Recreation 

- Removed grass and debris from Memory Park pond outflow 
- Spread fire ant killer at Cedar Brake Park 
- Repaired window blinds in Community Center 
- Delivered requested supplies for Fernland Park docents 
- Removed all light post electrical covers ahead of Solomon Electric installing 

receptacles in Cedar Brake Park 
- M/W/F cleaning of all park facilities 
- Weekly cleaning of Community Center building 
- Monthly check of all park facility lights 
- Monthly check of all irrigation systems with repairs as needed 
- Monthly wasp check at Fernland 

 
The docents at Fernland reported a total of 514 visitors for the month and 
provided 45 tours. 

 
                                                                                                                                                                          Report prepared by: 

Mike Muckleroy  
Director of Public Works 

December 6, 2018 

























UTILITY REPORTS – NOVEMBER 2018 

 

TOTAL REVENUE 

 

UTILITIES 

 

PERMITS 

 

Utilities 

 

$143,639.09 

 

Permits 

 

$10,359.70 

 

Community Building 

 

$1,335.00 

New Water Accts. 27 

Disconnected Water Accts.  12 

Total Number of Active Accts. 718 

Type Permit Total Revenue 

 

Building - Residential 

 

6 

 

$5,497.50 

 

Building - Commercial 

 

0 

 

$0.00 



 

 

 

 

 

Occupancy  1 $60.00 

 

Photography 

 

7 

 

$175.00 

Burn 1 $25.00 

Irrigation 6 $577.70 

 

Electrical 

 

7 

 

$1,311.00 

 

Mechanical 

 

7 

 

$1,096.00 

 

Plumbing 

 

6 

  

$1,517.50 

 

Sign 

 

2 

 

$100.00 

 

Total:  

 

43 

 

$10,359.70 

 



COMMUNITY BUILDING   

 

 
CITY ACCOUNT CONSUMPTION 

  SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER 

Community Building – Irrigation (01-8732-00) 8 5 4 

Community Building (01-0130-00) 2             0 5 
City Cemetery (01-1110-00) 0 0 0 
City Welcome Sign Irrigation at HWY 105 & 
Prairie – Rose Garden (01-8733-00) 

0 1 0 

North Liberty Sewer Plant    
Cedar Break Park Irrigation (01-8736-00) 3 0 0 
Cedar Break Park Restrooms (01-8735-00) 1 1 1 
Fernland  (01-8737-00) 6 4 5 
Memory Park (01-5885-00) 184 116 11 
Community Building Stage Irrigation – Rose 
Garden (01-6180-00) 

2 2 2 

City Hall & Irrigation (01-6190-00) 29 5 12 
Homecoming Park Restrooms (01-8820-00) 0 1 0 
Homecoming Park Drinking Ftn (01-8738-00) 0 0 0 
Buffalo Springs Sewer Plant (01-8821-00) 1 2 1 

 

 

Type of Rental Number of Bookings Revenue  

Profit 8   $1,335.00 

Non - Profit  13 $0.00 



 
 
 
 
 

 
City of Montgomery 

Operations Report  
October 2018  

9/18/18-10/17/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 2 of 10 

 
 
 
Dear City of Montgomery Council Members: 
 
 
We are pleased to provide you with the monthly operations report.  This report summarizes the 
major events that occurred during the operating month. Our mission, as always, is to assist the 
district in providing safe and reliable water to the residents. 
 
The water plants, wastewater plant and drinking water quality is checked on a daily basis.  
Wastewater collection system lift stations are checked three times a week.  Alarms are 
monitored, and our staff is on 24-hour call.  Our construction crews are minutes away from the 
City. 
 
Our operators collect and enter all facility data into Kardia.  Our operators note any issues or 
problems that are observed during the day.  Mission Control is instantly aware of the issue and 
immediately begins the resolution process.  This approach benefits our clients because decisions 
can be made based on relevant data.  
 
 
All the district’s data can be accessed on-line.  The data is username and password protected.  
The data is integrated with Kardia and updated daily.  District alerts that are generated by Kardia 
can be sent to board designated recipients. GUS appreciates the trust and confidence that the 
board has in our team. We work diligently to provide our clients with accurate and useful 
information.  
 
 
 
 
 
Michael Williams 
 
 
 
Vice President of Operations 
Gulf Utility Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 3 of 10 

 
 
District Alerts 9/18-10/17  
 
09/29/2018 – Lift station 2, High wet well 
Upon arrival operator found lift station 2 at high wet well due to possible rain water infiltration. 
Operator monitored facility and reset auto dialer to ensure level was lowered. 
 
10/07/2018 – Water plant 1 and Lift stations 2, 8, 9, 10, 13 & 14, Power failure 
Upon arrival operator found no power at plant and was running on generator due to a car 
hitting a power pole on liberty street. This also affected several lift stations Entergy was called 
to restore power. 
 
10/09/2018 – Lift station 2, High wet well 
Operator investigated issue and found lift station at high level due to heavy rain flow. Operator 
continued to monitor facility until levels dropped and lift station is back to normal.  
 
10/15/2018 – WWTP 1 and WP2, Power failure 
Upon arrival operator found facilities with no power, alarm was due to power surges in the area 
and power was restored. 
 
10/15/2018 – Lift station 2, Variable frequency drive (VFD) failure  
Upon arrival operator found lift pump #3 called out VFD failure, the pump was reset and tested. 
Operator monitored facility and reset alarm. 
 
10/15/2018 – Lift Station 2, High level 
Operator investigated issue, alarm was due to a rain storm. Operator monitored facility and 
reset alarms. 
 
10/16/2018 – Lift station 1, High level 
Operator investigated issue and found lift station at high level due to heavy rain fall. Operator 
continued to monitor facility until levels dropped and lift station is back to normal.  
 
10/17/2018 – Water plant 3, High Chlorine residual 
Operator found a high chlorine residual at the facility and discovered that the solenoid valve 
that feed chlorine to well 4 did not close when the well turned off. Water was drained from 
tanks and refilled to lower chlorine residual. The distribution system was flushed until chlorine 
levels were within normal parameters. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 4 of 10 

Wastewater Plant Flow Detail 
 

 
 
 

 Flow for the month of September – October was 4,789,000 gallons   
 

 Daily peak flow October 16, 2018 was 390,000 gallons  
o 98% of permitted value 

 
 Average Daily Flow 154,500 gallons   

o 39% of permitted value 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/
18

/2
01

8
9/

19
/2

01
8

9/
20

/2
01

8
9/

21
/2

01
8

9/
22

/2
01

8
9/

23
/2

01
8

9/
24

/2
01

8
9/

25
/2

01
8

9/
26

/2
01

8
9/

27
/2

01
8

9/
28

/2
01

8
9/

29
/2

01
8

9/
30

/2
01

8
10

/1
/2

01
8

10
/2

/2
01

8
10

/3
/2

01
8

10
/4

/2
01

8
10

/5
/2

01
8

10
/6

/2
01

8
10

/7
/2

01
8

10
/8

/2
01

8
10

/9
/2

01
8

10
/1

0/
20

18
10

/1
1/

20
18

10
/1

2/
20

18
10

/1
3/

20
18

10
/1

4/
20

18
10

/1
5/

20
18

10
/1

6/
20

18
10

/1
7/

20
18

0
50000

100000
150000
200000
250000
300000
350000
400000
450000

September-October Daily Effluent Trend

Daily Effluent Daily Trend



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 5 of 10 

 
 
 
 
Discharge Limitations 
 

 Daily Average Flow 400,000 gallons (0.4 MGD) 
 2-Hour Peak Flow 833 gpm 
 CBOD daily average 10 mg/l 
 Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 15 mg/l 
 Ammonium Nitrogen (NH3) 2 mg/l 
 Chlorine Residual >1.0 mg/l < 4.0 mg/l 

 The current permit expires 06/01/2022 
 
 
Effluent 
 
TSS, DO, E.Coli, NH3N, PH sample results were all comfortable within the parameters set by the 
State of Texas. 
 
  Buffalo Springs WWTP Effluent Monitoring Report 

Effluent Permitted Values Parameter Measured Excursion 

Average Monthly T.S.S. 15 mg/l 3.80 no 

Average Monthly NH3 2 mg/l 0.20 no 

Minimal CL2 Residual 1 mg/l 1.04 no 

Max CL2 Residual 4 mg/l 3.73 no 

Rainfall for the Month 
 

12.75 inches  
  There were no excursions for the month of October 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 6 of 10 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 7 of 10 

 
 
 
Water Report 
  
9/18/2017-10/17/2018   
 

2018 

Well Name Recorded Flow % of Total Rating G/Day YTD Pumpage YTD % Permitted 
Value 

Remaining 
Permit % 

Well 2 0.338 4.31% 0.864 4.329 4.94% 47.551 45.53% 

Well 3 3.224 41.14% 0.864 21.573 24.60% 47.551 45.53% 

Well 4 3.274 54.54% 2.160 61.789 70.46% 75.100 17.72% 

Total 7.836 100.00% 3.888 87.690 100% 122.651   

Flushing 0.3413             

Subtotal 7.4947             

Sold 7.418             

% Accounted 99%             

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Accountability  
Total Water Sourced 7.836 
Flushing 0.341 

Subtotal 7.495 
Sold 7.418 
Accountability % 99% 

CONNECTIONS 
School 12 
Commercial Inside 142 
Commercial Outside 1 
Residential Inside 592 
Residential Outside 25 
Church 13 
City 15 
Hydrant 6 
Multifamily 11 
n/a 2 
Total 819 



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 8 of 10 

 
 

 

Date Total  Well_1 Well_2 Well_3 Well_4 

AVG 8.897 0.000 0.569 1.727 6.601 

10/18/2017 11.337 0.000 0.581 0.297 10.459 

11/17/2017 9.688 0.000 0.718 0.283 8.687 

12/18/2017 7.951 0.000 1.769 0.299 5.883 

1/18/2018 5.943 0.000 0.139 0.423 5.381 

2/18/2018 6.299 0.000 0.418 0.735 5.146 

3/18/2018 5.584 0.000 0.138 0.515 4.931 

4/18/2018 7.61 0.000 0.160 1.899 5.551 

5/18/2018 9.304 0.000 0.725 0.730 7.849 

6/18/2018 11.593 0.000 1.105 4.582 5.906 

7/18/2018 9.37 0.000 0.425 2.361 6.584 

8/18/2018 11.73 0.000 0.751 1.145 9.834 

9/18/2018 11.422 0.000 0.13 5.959 5.333 

10/18/2018 7.836 0.000 0.338 3.224 4.274 

Total  115.67 0.000 7.397 22.452 85.818 
 
 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Ground Water Production

Well 1

Well 2

Well 3

Well 4



Gulf Utility Services Operations Report 
December 11, 2018  

Page 9 of 10 

 
 
 

Date Accountability  Unaccounted  
Total 

Sourced  
Water 
Sold  

Flushing 
Leaks 

Unbilled 
Water 

10/18/2017 89% 1.279 11.337 9.368 0.690 1.969 

11/17/2017 83% 1.615 9.688 7.767 0.306 1.921 

12/18/2017 79% 1.7051 7.951 6.136 0.110 1.815 

1/18/2018 93% 0.389 5.943 5.369 0.185 0.574 

2/18/2018 95% 0.323 6.299 5.791 0.185 0.508 

3/18/2018 101% -0.077 5.584 5.459 0.202 0.125 

4/18/2018 91% 0.709 7.610 6.75 0.151 0.860 

5/18/2018 96% 0.327 9.304 8.814 0.163 0.490 

6/18/2018 96% 0.458 11.593 10.976 0.159 0.617 

7/18/2018 98% 0.141 9.370 9.043 0.186 0.327 

8/18/2018 96% 0.422 11.730 10.922 0.386 0.808 

9/18/2018 95% 0.621 11.422 10.678 0.123 0.744 

10/18/2018 99% 0.0767 7.836 7.418 0.3413 0.418 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16
Water Accountability

Total
Sourced
Water Sold

Unbilled
Water



 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 
 

Date Sourced Water Sold  Unbilled Water Treated Water Return % Rain  

10/18/2017 11.337 9.368 1.969 5.204 56% 2.75 

11/17/2017 9.688 7.767 1.921 5.473 70% 4.15 

12/18/2017 7.951 6.136 1.815 5.412 88% 3.74 

1/18/2018 5.943 5.369 0.574 3.956 74% 2.75 

2/18/2018 6.299 5.791 0.508 3.979 69% 3.50 

3/18/2018 5.584 5.459 0.125 3.744 69% 3.75 

4/18/2018 7.610 6.75 0.860 4.096 61% 6.75 

5/18/2018 9.304 8.814 0.490 3.481 39% 2.50 

6/18/2018 11.593 10.976 0.617 3.121 28% 3.25 

7/18/2018 9.370 9.043 0.327 3.417 38% 7.00 

8/18/2018 11.730 10.922 0.808 3.049 28% 2.75 

9/18/2018 11.422 10.678 0.744 3.485 33% 6.31 

10/18/2018 7.836 7.418 0.418 4.789 65% 12.75 
 

0

5

10

15

Water Sold vs. Treated Water

Sourced Water Sold Unbilled Water Treated Water



 

1575 Sawdust Road, Suite 400 
The Woodlands, Texas 77380-3795 

Tel: 281.363.4039 
Fax: 281.363.3459 

www.jonescarter.com 
 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

 
 
 
December 7, 2018 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Montgomery 
101 Old Plantersville Road 
Montgomery, Texas 77316 
 
Re:  Engineering Report 

 Council Meeting: December 11, 2018 
  City of Montgomery 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
The following information summarizes our activities on your behalf since the October 23, 2018 Council Meeting: 
 
Status of Previously Authorized Projects: 
 
All projects discussed below are included in the enclosed master schedule and maps of active developments and 
capital projects. 

 
a) Buffalo Springs Drive Bridge Repair (FEMA) 

The contractor has completed construction and the road is open for use. We held a final inspection on 
November 2nd, and the contractor has addressed all punch list items. We received and approved Pay 
Estimate No. 10 in the amount of $146,631.59 to Glenn Fuqua, Inc. We also prepared and approved 
Change Order No. 3 to account for the final quantity adjustments and additional impact days. The 
change order resulted in a $13,758.70 increase to the construction contract amount and 13 additional 
days to the contract. After the inclusion of the additional 13 days, the contractor will be assessed 86 
days of liquidated damages, totaling $21,500.00 ($250 per day per the contract). The damages will be 
deducted from the final pay estimate for the project.   
 

b) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan - CP No. 2, 12-inch Waterline Across Town Creek 
Bridge 
The contractor is substantially complete with construction and the waterline is in service. We held a 
final inspection on November 28th and the contractor is working to address all punch list items. We 
received and approved Pay Estimate No. 1 in the amount of $83,140.33 to Spartan Direct Solutions, 
LLC. 
 

c) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3 – Downtown and SH-105 Waterline 
Replacement 
As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (“DWSRF”) 
loan. We submitted the Engineering Feasibility Report to the TWDB on October 30th and are 
coordinating with the TWDB to receive approval. We expect to complete the design this month and 
receive plan approval in January 2019. We expect construction to begin in March 2019. 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 2 

December 7, 2018 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

 
 
 

Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.): 

d) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 9 - Water Plant No. 3 Improvements 
As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB DWSRF loan. This project has been delayed due 
other City projects taking priority but is moving forward again. We expect to complete the design and 
receive all plan approvals in spring 2019.  
 

e) Water Distribution System Analysis and Master Plan-CP No. 1, Water Plant No. 2 GST Backfill 
As a reminder, this project will be rebid with the Water Plant No. 3 Improvements project. 

 
f) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 3b – Lift Station No. 1 Replacement 

As a reminder, this project is included in the TWDB Clean Water State Revolving Fund (“CWSRF”) loan.  
The design is substantially complete and we are working with the TWDB for final approval.  

 
g) Sanitary Sewer System Analysis and Master Plan – CP No. 10 – Lift Station No. 3 Force Main Re-Route 

As a reminder, this project is included in TWDB CWSRF loan. The design is substantially complete, has 
received TxDOT approval, and is under final internal review before undergoing TWDB review. We 
expect construction to begin in Early 2019.  

 
h) 18” Gravity Sanitary Sewer Extension 

The contractor is substantially complete with construction of the sanitary sewer pipe, and we are 
completing all testing. We received and approved Pay Estimate No. 2 in the amount of $218,539.17 to 
Randy Roan Construction, Inc. and are preparing Pay Estimate No. 3. 
 

i) Baja Road Water and Drainage Improvements (CDBG) 
We held a pre-construction meeting for the project on November 27th at City Hall and issued a Notice 
to Proceed on November 30th. It is our understanding the contractor has mobilized onsite and is 
beginning work. As a reminder, the contract period of performance will end on January 29, 2019. We 
are coordinating with the City Administrator to discuss potential options for Phase II of the project. 
 

j) Baja Road Rehabilitation (FEMA) 
We received bids for the project on November 29th at City hall. Enclosed under separate cover is a letter 
to Council regarding the receipt of bids for the Baja Road Rehabilitation project. The bids received were 
significantly higher than the original cost estimate, and we recommend not awarding the contract to 
the low base bidder and rebidding the project. 
 

Agenda Item – Consideration and possible action regarding award and execution of construction 
contracts for the Baja Road Rehabilitation project. 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 3 

December 7, 2018 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

Status of Previously Authorized Projects (cont.): 

k) Atkins Creek Water, Sanitary, and Storm Sewer Repairs (FEMA) 
We have completed the required drainage and scour analysis, are substantially complete with the plans 
and have submitted the application for a Nationwide permit to the US Army Corps of Engineers for 
review. During a weekly conference call with FEMA on December 4th, the City was informed that FEMA 
only determined there was approximately $68,000 in damages to put the project back to the pre-
disaster condition, therefore they would not approve the mitigated project. Enclosed for your reference 
are the current cost estimates we prepared for the pre-disaster and mitigated projects. As we have 
discussed previously it is not possible to put the project back to its pre-disaster condition due since you 
only fill a 40-foot-wide section of the 1,600 feet that has been lost. We discussed this with FEMA on 
December 7th and they are reevaluating the estimated cost and alternatives to move forward with the 
project.    
 

l) GLO Projects 
We received Request for Information No. 2 on October 25th and worked with the City Administrator 
and GrantWorks to provide a response on November 1st. We are continuing to coordinate with 
GrantWorks to determine when funds will become available. 
 

Existing and Upcoming Developments: 

a) Feasibility Studies 

There are no active feasibility studies at this time. 

b) Plan Reviews   

i. Peter Hill Public Infrastructure – We received revised plans on July 3rd and await the deposit of 
funds from the developer before proceeding with our review. 

ii. Shoppes at Montgomery, Phase II – We received revised plans on November 8th. All outstanding 
comments are related to the City’s tree ordinance that is currently under review. We returned 
our comments, based on the current tree ordinance, on December 7th. 

iii. Exxon Eva Street – We received plans on August 28th and returned our comments on October 
17th after discussing requirements to be shown on the plans. It is our understanding the City 
Administrator plans to meet with the developer to discuss acquiring additional right-of-way for 
TxDOT. 

iv. Wendy’s (Haza Foods) – We did not receive revised plans this month. 

v. Living Savior Lutheran Church – We received plans on October 25th and returned our comments 
to the plans on November 7th. 

vi. Best Donuts (Samdana Investments) – We received plans on October 19th and returned our 
comments to the plans on November 7th. 

 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 4 

December 7, 2018 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

c) Plat Reviews  

i. Samdana Investments Minor Plat – We did not receive a revised plat this month. 

d) Ongoing Construction 

i. Hills of Town Creek, Section 3 – Construction on the public improvements to serve the 
development is substantially complete. We performed a final inspection on the infrastructure on 
December 4th and are preparing the punch list to submit to the contractor. 

Ongoing Construction (cont.):  

ii. Emma’s Way – We completed a punch list inspection on December 4th to determine if all punch 
list items have been addressed. The contractor is working to address the remaining punch list 
items that were not addressed prior to the inspection. 

iii. Shoppes at Montgomery, Phase I – It is our understanding the contractor is substantially 
complete with construction of the public infrastructure. We are working to schedule a final 
inspection for the work. 

e) One-Year Warranty Inspections 

i. Lift Station No. 14 – We are working with Public Works and Gulf Utilities to bring the lift station 
to the proper specifications with the funds deposited by the developer for the replacement 
pumps.  

ii. Gardner Drive – We conducted a one-year warranty inspection for the public infrastructure 
installed on August 28th. We confirmed that all punch list items have been addressed, and we 
recommend acceptance of the infrastructure and release of all maintenance bonds. 

Agenda Item – Consideration and possible action regarding completion of a one-year 
warranty period and release of maintenance bond for the Gardner Drive Public Road, 
Public Waterline, Public Sanitary Sewer, and Public Storm Sewer project. 

iii. Lake Creek Village, Section 3 – We conducted one-year warranty inspection for the public 
infrastructure on October 19th. It is our understanding the contractor is working to address all 
punch list items. 

iv. Flagship Boulevard Pavement Repair – We conducted a one-year warranty inspection for the 
public infrastructure installed on November 14th. No punch list items were identified at the 
inspection, and we recommend acceptance of the infrastructure and release of all maintenance 
bonds. 

Agenda Item – Consideration and possible action regarding completion of a one-year 
warranty period and release of maintenance bond for the Flagship Boulevard Pavement 
Repairs project. 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 5 

December 7, 2018 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

v. Heritage Place Medical Center 12” Waterline – We conducted a one-year warranty inspection 
for the public infrastructure installed on November 6th. We confirmed that all punch list items 
have been addressed, and we recommend acceptance of the infrastructure and release of all 
maintenance bonds. 

Agenda Item – Consideration and possible action regarding completion of a one-year 
warranty period and release of maintenance bond for the Heritage Place Medical Center 
12” Waterline project. 

vi. Buffalo Springs Shopping Center Phase II Public Water and Sanitary Sewer - We conducted a 
one-year warranty inspection for the public infrastructure installed on November 6th. It is our 
understanding the contractor is working to address all punch list items. 

Meetings and Ongoing Activities:  

a) Lone Star Parkway Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) – We are working with the H-GAC to discuss 
planning for the possible acceptance Lone Star Parkway by TxDOT in the future. We attended a meeting 
with TxDOT on November 6th to discuss including the project on TxDOT’s Regional Transportation Plan 
before including it on the H-GAC TIP.  
 

b) 2018 Annual Water Plant Inspection – We completed the 2018 annual water plant inspection of Water 
Plant Nos. 2 and 3 on November 6th and completed the electrical portion of the inspection on 
November 15th. We are preparing the report of our findings and plan to present our recommendations 
at your January 8th Council meeting. 

 
c) FM 149 Southbound Turn Lane – It is our understanding the City Administrator is planning to meet 

with the owner of the Exxon at the northwest corner of the FM 149/SH-105 intersection to discuss 
obtaining the additional right-of-way required to construct a southbound right turn lane.  
 

d) Weekly Operations Conference Call – We continue hosting a weekly conference call with 
representatives from Gulf Utility Service, Inc. and City Staff. Items of note discussed during the previous 
month included receiving estimates for repairs to Lift Station No. 14, updates on various warranty 
inspections, general updates on all active design and construction projects, and general operations of 
the City’s water and sanitary sewer facilities. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Montgomery 
    Page 6 

December 7, 2018 

 

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439  |  Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046106

 

Please contact Katherine Vu or me if you have any questions.  

Sincerely, 

 
Chris Roznovsky, PE 
Engineer for the City 

 
CVR/kmv 
K:\W5841\W5841-0900-00 General Consultation\Meeting Files\Status Reports\2018\Engineer's Reports\Engineer's Report 12-11-18.docx 

Enclosures:  Atkins Creek Cost Estimates 
Active Capital Projects Map 

   Active Developments Map 
Cc (via email):     The Planning and Zoning Commission – City of Montgomery 

 Mr. Jack Yates – City of Montgomery, City Administrator 
Ms. Susan Hensley – City of Montgomery, City Secretary 
Mr. Larry Foerster – Darden, Fowler & Creighton, LLP, City Attorney 





Jack Yates, City Administrator





Item Unit

No. Description Unit Quantity Price Total

1. Move-in, Bonds & Insurance LS 1 30,000$    30,000$        

2. Import and Install Backfill CY 2,000 20              40,000          

3. 8" PVC Waterline LF 153 80              12,200          -                     

4. 8" PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 144 75              10,800          

5. 2" Blow-Off Valve & Box EA 1 500           500               -                     

6. Cement Stabilized Sand Cradle EA 1 15,000      15,000          -                     

7. Connection to Existing 8" Waterline EA 1 2,000        2,000            -                     

8. Connection to Existing 8" Sanitary Sewer Line EA 2 1,000        2,000            -                     

9. Remove and Replace 42" Safety End Treatment LS 1 15,000      15,000          

10. Trench Safety System LF 297 2                600               

11. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan LS 1 10,000      10,000          

12. Site Restoration including Hydromulch LS 1 5,000        5,000            

Subtotal 143,100$     

Contingencies (15%) 21,500          (1)

Reimbursable Expenses 31,000          (2)

Engineering and Surveying 96,500          (3)

TOTAL 292,100$     

Source of Funding: FEMA(90%) 262,890$     

City (10%) 29,210$       

292,100$     

Notes:
(1)

Contingencies include a 15% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of proposal.
(2)

(3)

(4) Proposed work does not and cannot include improvements to Atkins Creek on private property upstream and 

downstream of the project location. Therefore, the project cannot account for upstream and downstream 

erosion, and is not a feasible solution to the damages.

Includes engineering, coordination and meetings with FEMA, drainage and scour analyses, surveying, 

construction administration, and field project representation.

Includes geotechnical investigation, environmental sub-consultation, construction materials testing, advertising 

fees, and reproduction.

CONCEPTUAL CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

FOR

ATKINS CREEK SANITARY SEWER AND WATERLINE REPAIRS

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

December 7, 2018

OPTION 1: RETURN TO PRE-DISASTER CONDITIONS

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning
Under the Authority of:
Engineer: Jeffrey M. Bishop, P.E.
License No.: 126353
It is Preliminary in Nature and not to be Used for Feasibility of Land Purchases, 
Bond Applications, Loans or Grants. 

     K:\W5841\W5841-0038-00 FEMA Atkins Creek Water, Sanitary Sewer,\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COST ESTIMATE Atkins Creek Repairs Pre Existing Conditions 

12.7.18.xlsx



Item Unit

No. Description Unit Quantity Price Total

1. Move-in, Bonds & Insurance LS 1 30,000$     30,000$        

2. Import and Install Backfill CY 450 20               9,000            

3. 16" Welded Steel Carrier Casing LF 255 175            44,600          

4. 8" PVC Waterline LF 155 35               5,400            -                     

5. 8" PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 150 30               4,500            

6. 2" Blow-Off Valve & Box EA 1 500            500               -                     

7. Drilled Concrete Piers with Pile Cap and Saddle LS 1 50,000       50,000          -                     

8. 16" Steel Saddle Connection EA 4 2,000         8,000            

9. Connection to Existing 8" Waterline EA 1 2,000         2,000            -                     

10. Connection to Existing 8" Sanitary Sewer Line EA 2 1,000         2,000            -                     

11. Remove and Replace 42" Safety End Treatment LS 1 15,000       15,000          

12. 24" Concrete Rip-Rap SY 324 80               25,900          

13. 6" Slope Paving with Head & Toe Wall SY 160 150            24,000          

14. Trench Safety System LF 100 2                 200               

15. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan LS 1 10,000       10,000          

16. Site Restoration including Hydromulch LS 1 10,000       10,000          

Subtotal 241,100$     

Contingencies (15%) 36,200          (1)

Engineering, Surveying and Reimbursable Expenses 128,500        
(2)

TOTAL 405,800$     

Source of Funding: FEMA(90%) 365,220$     

City (10%) 40,580$       

405,800$     

Notes:
(1)

Contingencies include a 15% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of proposal.
(2) Includes engineering, coordination and meetings with FEMA, drainage and scour analysis, surveying, construction 

administration, field project representation, geotechnical investigation, environmental sub-consultation, 

structural sub-consultation, construction materials testing, advertising fees, and reproduction.

CONCEPTUAL CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

FOR

ATKINS CREEK SANITARY SEWER, WATERLINE, & STORM SEWER REPAIRS

OPTION 2: AERIAL WATER AND SANITARY SEWER CROSSING

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

December 7, 2018

This Document is Released for the Purpose of:
General Financial Planning
Under the Authority of:
Engineer:Jeffrey M. Bishop, P.E.
License No.: 126353

     K:\W5841\W5841-0038-00 FEMA Atkins Creek Water, Sanitary Sewer,\2 Design Phase\Cost Estimates\COST ESTIMATE Atkins Creek Repairs 12.7.18.xlsx



Baja Road/MLK Drive
Improvements

[CDBG]

Sanitary Sewer
System Evaluation

(Under Review)

Water Plant No. 3
Improvements

[TWDB]
(In Design)

Buffalo Springs Drive
Bridge and Waterline       
    [ FEMA/CDBG]

(Construction)

Lift Station No. 1
Replacement

[TWDB]
(In Design)

18" Gravity Sanitary
Sewer Line Extension

[Developer]
(Construction)

Lift Station No. 3
Force Main Re-route

[TWDB]
(In Design)

Downtown and SH-105
Waterline Replacement

[TWDB]
(In Design)

Water Plant No. 2
Ground Storage Tank

Backfill System
(On Hold)

Baja Road
Improvements

[FEMA]

Atkins Creek Water, Sanitary,
and Storm Sewer Repair

[FEMA]
(In Design)

SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

FM 2854

W FM
 10

97

SH 105  W

FM
 14

9

LIBERTY ST

CLU
B DR

N LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

COLLEGE

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

E FM 1097

GRAND PIN E DR

CAROLINE ST

OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

BOIS D'ARC BEND RD

POND ST

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

GRAND VIEW DR

MIA
LA

GO DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

PLEZ MORGAN DR

HARBOR SIDE BLVD

RENAISSANCE DR

C
B

ST
EW

AR
T DR

FLA GSHIP BLVD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

ST
EW

ART CREEK RD

SU
MM

IT
PA

RK
DR

HAVENSHIRE DR

PRAIRIE ST

HA
RLEY DR

LONE STAR BND

MCCOWAN

WOMACK CEMETERY RD

W E
ST

WA
Y DR

MAIDEN LN

ANNA SPRINGS LN

THOM AS ST

VINTA GEO AKS DR

PEEL PT

BR
OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

AB
NE

R LN

W GRAND POND DR

SU
NN

YF
IEL

D 
FA

RM

SIMONTON ST

LAWSON ST

GRA
ND

VIE
W PK

WY HA
RB

OR
 SI

DE
 LN

SH 105  W

FM 149

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

       LEGEND       
City Limits
MCAD Parcels

Pat
h: 

D:\
Pro

jec
ts\

Dis
tric

ts\
Cit

yO
fM

on
tgo

me
ry\

9-2
0-2

01
8\A

cti
veC

ap
Pro

jec
ts_

11
x17

.m
xd

     
     

Pro
jec

t N
um

be
r: W

58
41

-09
00

-18
     

     
Da

te:
 9/

20
/20

18
     

     
Us

er 
Na

me
: JC

P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE CAPITAL
PROJECTS

0 1,500750

Feet

(DECEMBER 2018)

(Construction)

(Bidding)



APACHE WELL CONTROL
EXPANSION

LAKE CREEK VILLAGE, SECTION THREE
22 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION

22.3 ACRES COMMERCIAL

VILLAS OF MIA LAGO,
SECTION TWO

42 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

5.70-ACRES COMMERCIAL
MIXED USE RETAIL

27-ACRES COMMERCIAL
MIXED USE RETAIL

SAMDANA INVESTMENTS
MIXED USE COMMERCIAL

MADSEN & RICHARDS
0.28-ACRES COMMERCIAL

HERITAGE PLACE
MEDICAL CENTER

18,000 SF MEDICAL
OFFICE BUILDING

WEST SIDE AT THE PARK
11 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

DUSTY'S
CARWASH

20-ACRES MONTGOMERY FIRST
PHASE I & II

MIXED USE COMMERCIAL
52-ACRES COMMERCIAL
125,000 SQ.FT. KROGER

ADDITIONAL MIXED
USE RETAIL

TOWN CREEK STORAGE
29,000 SF STORAGE FACILITY

PROCORE
DEVELOPMENT

BLUE WAVE
CARWASH

CVS PHARMACY

HILLS OF TOWN CREEK
SECTION THREE

49 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

EMMA'S WAY EXTENSION

STATE FARM

SPIRIT OF
TEXAS BANK

WENDY'S

LOUISA LANE
18 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

HERITAGE SENIORS
80 MULTIFAMILY UNITS

SH 105

LONE STAR PKWY

W FM 1097

FM
 28

54

FM
 14

9
SH 105  W

LIB
ER

TY
 ST

CLU
B DR

N
LIBERTY ST

CLEPPER

GRAND PINE DR

OLD PLANTERSVILLE RD

KINGS LN

JENNY LN

HUFFMAN ST
OLD DOBBIN PLANTERSVILLE RD

DR MARTIN LUTHER KING JR DR

PO
ND

 ST

SERENE WATER DR

RENAISSANCE DR

BERKLEY DR

BUFFALO SPRINGS DR

ARNSWORTH LN

PENINSULA POINT DR

GRANDVIEW
PT

COMMUNIT Y CENTER DR
GRAND VIEW DR

C
B

ST
EW

ART DR

LO
UI

SA
 ST

FLAGSHIP BLVD

B AJA RD

GRA
ND

VIE
W

BL
VD

WATERSTONE DR

CHICK LN

PA
RK

SID
E BL

VD

WE
ST

WA
Y DR

GRAND HARBOR BLVD

E G
RA

ND
P O

ND
CT

VINTAGE OAKS DR

PECAN COVE   W

PEEL PT

BR

OCK'S LN

HAMILTON RD

COMM ER C ER OW

W GRAND POND DR

SIMONTON ST

FM 149

SH 105  W

W FM 1097

GRAND VIEW DR

Montgomery

Montgomery

Montgomery

       LEGEND       
Active Development (Phase)

Complete/Under Warranty
Under Construction
In Design
Planning/Feasibility
City Limits
Stanley Lake MUD
City ETJ
City of Conroe ETJ
Floodway
100-year
500-year
MCAD Parcels

Pat
h: 

D:\
Pro

jec
ts\

Dis
tric

ts\
Cit

yO
fM

on
tgo

me
ry\

PR
JTS

\D
eve

lop
me

nt 
(De

cem
be

r 2
01

8)(
11

x17
).m

xd 
     

    P
roj

ect
 Nu

mb
er:

 W
58

41
-09

00
-18

     
     

Da
te:

 12
/7/

20
18

     
     

Us
er 

Na
me

: JC
P

VICINITY MAP
Scale: 1 inch equals 20 miles

1 inch equals 1,500 feet .
Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative location of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary.  No express warranties are made by
Jones|Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

ACTIVE
DEVELOPMENTS

(DECEMBER 2018)

0 1,500750

Feet


























































































































































































































	AGENDA - 121118 CITY COUNCIL
	ITEM #1 - PUBLIC HEARING ETJ EXPANSION
	ITEM #2 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #2A - APPROVAL OF 073118 MINUTES
	ITEM #2B - APPROVAL OF 080718 MINUTES
	ITEM #2C - APPROVAL OF 090418 MINUTES
	ITEM #2D - APPROVAL OF 111318 MINUTES

	ITEM #3 - RENEWAL OF CEDAR CREST MOBILE HOME PARK
	ITEM #4 - STYLECRAFT ENCROACHMENT & MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
	ITEM #5 - ONE YEAR WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE BOND GARDNER DRIVE
	ITEM #6 - ONE YEAR WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE BOND FLAGSHIP BLVD
	ITEM #7 - ONE YEAR WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE BOND HERITAGE PLACE MED CTR
	ITEM #8 - ASSIGNMENT OF ECON DEV AGREEMENT WITH MILESTONE
	ITEM #9 - DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
	ITEM #9A - CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
	ITEM #9B - PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT
	ITEM #9C - POLICE MONTHLY REPORT
	ITEM #9D - COURT MONTHLY REPORT
	ITEM #9E - UTILITY AND DEVELOPMENT MONTHLY REPORT
	utility reports – NOVEMBER 2018
	total revenue
	utilities
	Permits
	Community Building

	ITEM #9F - WATER REPORT
	ITEM #9G - ENGINEER'S REPORT
	ITEM #9H- FINANCE MONTHLY REPORT
	ITEM #9H - INVESTMENT REPORT

	ITEM #10 - ORDINANCE APPROVING PETITION OF EXPANSION OF ETJ
	ITEM #11 - ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE
	ITEM #12 - ACTION REGARDING AD FOR CHIEF OF POLICE POSITION
	ITEM #13 - REPORT ON COMPLETION OF BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE
	ITEM #14 - REPORT CITY INITIATED ZONING
	ITEM #14 - REPORT CITY INITIATED ZONING
	ITEM #14 - CITY INITIATED ZONING MAP

	ITEM #15 - APPROVAL REBIDDING BAJA ST PAVING PROJECT
	ITEM #16 - FILL VACANT CITY COUNCIL PLACE #5
	ITEM #17 - POSSIBLE OATH OF OFFICE FOR NEW COUNCIL MEMBER

